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1 MR. FULMER: Your Honor, this is Carnell Antonio .
2 |Bland. He's here on Indictment No. 2010-GS-42-1158.
3 |That's a true-billed indictment for érmed robbery. He's
4 {pleading guilty today without recommendation or negotiation
5 | £xrom the state.
6 Count two of the indictment is being dismissed upon
7 | his plea, Your Honor, as well as the accompanying burglary
8 | charges and kidnapping charges.
9 | THE COURT: You are Carnell Antonio Bland.
10 THE DEFEN’DANT: Yes, sir.
11 THE CdURT: Mr. Bean is your lawyer.
12 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.
13 THE COURT: How long has he been representing you?
14 THE DEFENDANT: Since I say about like a year or two
15 |years.
16 THE COURT: And --
17 THE DEFENDANT: Since I had this case.
18 THE COURT: Since Qctobef of 2009 or shortly
19 | thereafter?
20 THE DEFENDANT: Shortly after that, sir.
21 THE COURT: All right. During that time have you had
22 |plenty of opportunity to talk with him about your-charge --
23 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, s-ir.
24 THE COURT: -- and your apparent decisidn to‘plead
25 | guilty?
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' THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Did he go over this indictment with you

‘and explain.to you what the state claims ybu digr

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

. THE COURT: The state alleges on October the 27th of
2009 that you while armed with a deadly weapon -- that
weapon being a gun -- did take, steal and carry away from
the person or presence of William J. Brown:by uéing force
or violence or the threat of the use of force or violence
and in possession of a weapon certain goods or monies.

They've described the goods or monies as being money

that belonged to Mr. Brown. And they say intended to

‘deprive him permanently of the use or possession of his

property.

That constitutes armedlrobbery for which you could
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réceive a sentence of ﬁp to 30 years in jail. It requires
a mandatory minimum sentence of not less than ten years in
jail.

They also allege in a separaté count in the indictment
that you. did possess a weapon during the commission of a
violent crime, the violent crime being armed robbery. They
allege you possessed a gun or visibly displayed one du:ing_
that robbery, which carfies an additional fiﬁe years in
jail if you are convicted.

Mr. Fulmer has I think indicated that if you plead-.




1 |guilty to armed robbery he's going to dismiss that second
2 | count of the indictment.
3 Is that true?
4 MR. FULMER: That's right, Your Honor.
5 THE COURT: And he's also going to dismiss a burglary
6 | first charge and two kidnapping charges. Did you
7 | understand that?
8 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.
9 THE COURT: Okay. So you understand now what you're
10 | charged with and what you are pleading guilty to.
11 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.
12 THE COURT: Do youlunderstand the potential sentence I
13 |can impose if I accept that plea? |
14 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.
15 THE - COURT: Do you still want to go forward?
16 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. A
17 THE COURT: Mr. Bean explained to you the -- well, let
18 |me ask you this. '
19 Did you tell Mr. Bean everything you know about these
20 |allegations?
21 THE DEFENDANT: Allegations that on --
22 THE COURT: In other words, what they claim you did.
23 |pid you tell him eveiything you know about this event that
24 |occurred back in October of 20092 ' ‘
25 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.




THE COURT: And did you and he discuss whether or not

1
2 | you had a defense to the charge of armed robbery?
3 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.
4 THE COURT: Do you know of any defense that you have
5 | to that charge?
6 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.
7 THE COURT: Well, what defense do you have?
8 THE DEFENDANT: Say that. Say that one more‘fime now,
9 |sir.
10 THE COURT: I said did you discuss with Mr. Bean
11 | whether or not you.have some defense to the charge of armed
12 | robbery.
13 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir, yes, sir.
14 THE COURT: All right. Aftér‘y'all.diséussed it --
15 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.
16 THE COURT: -- did you decide that you dia or did not
17 | have a defense to armed robbery?
18 THE DEFENDANT: I decided I had something tovdo with
19 |it, sir. _
20 THE COURT: No. I asked if you had a defenéé to it.
21 | A defense is some reason why you should not be found
22 | guilty.
23 THE DEFENDANT: Oh, no, sir.
24 THE COURT: Do you know of any reason why you should
25 | not be found gquilty?




1 THE DEFENDANT: No, sir.

2 THE COURT: Okay. Did he explain to you each of the

3 |constitutional rights that you have to.give up if you want

4 | to plead guilty? | |

5 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

6 THE COURT: Do you understand you have the right to

7 | remain silent?

8 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

9 THE COURT: And that of course means you don't have to
10 | say anything.. You don't have to answer any questions. You
11 [{don't have to testify. You don't have to make a statement.
12 You never have to assist the state in their efforts to
13 | prove your guilt by you admitting your guilt or testifying
14 | to fécts that might tend to prove it or answering questions
15 | that might tend to prove it.

16 You have an absolute right to remain silent and to

17 | require the state to come into court with sufficient

18 |evidence to establish your guilt to the satisfaction of a
19 | jury beyond a reasonable doubt.

20 Do you understand your right to remain silent?

21 VTHE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

22 THE COURT: Well, now, you understand you have to give
23 |that up if you want to plead guilty.

24 TEE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

25 THE COURT: Well, do you want give it up?




THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

25

-1

2 THE COURT: Are you doing so voluntarily?

3 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

4 THE COURT: You also a right to confront any witness

5 | that would offer evidence against you.

6 In other words, you've got a right to make the state

7 bring the witness into court. Anybody that would tés;ify

8 | or provide any evidence of your guilt wouid ha&e to take

9 | the witness stand. They'd have to testify in your presence
10 |under oath. You could see them; you could hear them. Your
11 | lawyexr could examine them in order to test their

12 reliabiliﬁy and the credibility of the information they're
13 providipg. |
14 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

15 THE COURT: Now, when you plead guilty the witnesses '’
16 |don't, don't take the witness stand and testify. You don't
17 |get to examine. Do: you understand that?

18 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. _

19 THE COURT: Well, understanding that you have a right
20 to.cenfront them do you wish to give that righﬁ up in order
21 |to plead guilty? |
22 THE DEFENDANT.: Yes, sir.
23 THE COURT: And you also have right to have a 5ury

24 | trial. You have a righﬁ to have 12 jurors decide if you're

guilty or not. |
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If you elect to have'a»jury trial you help pick the
jufy. Twelve are chosen from a larger group of jurors.

Once those 12 are selected they'd sit over there in
the jury box. They'd listen to all of the testimony. They
consider all the evidence. From that evidence-théy decide
what they think happened back in October of 2009 as it
relates to these charges.

And once they decide the facts théy apply thé law that
I prbvide them, and they'determine whether or not you are
quilty of armed robbery or not. Before you could be found
guilty of armed robbery all 12 jurors would have to bei
convinced of your guilt beyond a reasonablé doubt .

The burden is on the state to convinge the jury of
that fact. The burden's not on you to proVe anything. So

you can have a jury trial and still sit at the table and
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remain silent. You don't have to take the witness stand.
You don't have to testify. You don't have to call any
witnesses, don't have to produce any evidence. The burden
is not upon you to prove anything. The burden is om the
state to prove you guilty. Do you understand your right to
have a jury trial? |

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT; Do you wish to give that riéht up in ordex
to plead guilty?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.
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1 THE COURT: The solicitor says he's going to dismiss_
2 | count two of this indictment, which is a weapon charge;
3 |going to dismiss two kidnappings and one burglary first
4 | degree if you plead guilty to armed robbery. |

5 Other than his agreement to drop those chargés wefe
6 | you promised anything else that caused you to make your
7 decision to plead guilty?

8 THE DEFENDANT: No, sir.
9 THE COURT: Are you pleading guilty freely and

10 {voluntarily?

11 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.-

12 THE COURT: Are you guilty of armed robbery?

13 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir, I am. _

14 THE COURT: And what did you do that makes you guilfy
15 ~of-armed_robber?? ‘

16 THE DEFENDANT: I went in, went in their house.

17 THE COURT: Went into a house?

18 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

19 THE . COURT: And what did you do when you went in?

20 THE DEFENDANT: Went in there, me and a couple of

21 | other guys, and took some weed.

22 ‘THE COURT: Took some weed?

23 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir, and money.

24 THE COURT: Sir?

25 THE DEFENDANT: Weed and money.

10
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1 THE COURT: How much money did.you get?

2 THE DEFENDANT: I don't know, sir.

3 THE COURT: Did you tell Mr. Jeter about that money?

4 THE DEFENDANT: Sir? '

5 THE COURT: Did you tell Mr. Jeter about the money?
-6 THE DEFENDANT: Did I tell him about the money?

7 THE COURT: Right. Mr. Jeter. Was he with you?

8 THE DEFENDANT: _Yes, sir.

9 THE COURT: Did you tell him about taking the mohey?
10 - THE DEFENDANT: I don't understand what you mean by
11 thét, sir.

12 THE COURT: Don't understand. Did you tell Mr. Jeter

13 | that you took some money from Mr. Brown?

14 THE DEFENDANT: Oh, yes, sir, yes, sir.

15 THE COURT: You did?

16 THE DE?ENDANT: Yes, sir, yes, sir.

17 THE COURT: Because he says he didn't know anything

18 | about money. He said he knows about that weed but he
.19 |didn't get any money. He got the weed. Is that true or

20 | false?

21 THE DEFENDANT: That's false, sir.

22 THE COURT: What'd he get?

23 THE DEFENDANT: I got, got money.

24 THE COURT: What did he .get?

25 THE DEFENDANT: He just got weed, sir.

11
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1 THE COURT: He just got the weed?
2 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir, he got the weed.
3 THE COURT:.' He didn't get any money.
4 THE DEFENDANT: Not that T know of, sir.
5 THE COURT: Okay. Who got the money?
6 THE DEFENDANT: I did, sir. |
7 THE COURT: How much did you get?
8 THE DEFENDANT: I'd say about two hundred or three
9 | hundred dollars, sir.
10 THE COURT: All right. And how much weed did you get?
11 THE DEFENDANT: A good bit of it, sir.
12 THE COURT: Well, like how much?
13 THE DEFENDANT: About like two or three pounds, sir.
14 THE COURT: Two or ﬁhree pounas?v |
15 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.
18 THE COURT: Was Mr. Brown just using that for his own
17 | consumption? |
18 THE DEFENDANT: Sir?
19 THE COURT: Was he just using that? Did he smoke a
20 | lot>?
21 THE DEFENDANT: I don't know, sir.
22 THE COURT: You don't know?
23 THE DEFENDANT: No, sir.
24 THE COURT: Well, how did you know to go down there
25 | and get it?

12
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1 THE DEFENDANT: How?
2 THE COURT: How did you know Mr. Brown had two pounds
3 | of weed down there?
4 THE DEFENDANT: Oh, through somebody else, sir.
5 THE COURT: Who?
6 THE DEFENDANT: I was in the wrong by liétening to
7 | somebody else, sir.
8 THE COURT: Somebody told you he had a lot of dope and
9 | money?
10 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.
11 THE COURT: And y'all decided to go down there and
_12 take it?
13- THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir, on a drug dealqwent bad,
14 | some things. I sent some money down there to.-him through
15 | somebody else, and it's some misunderstanding with the
16 sitﬁation. And I went down there, sir.
17 THE COURT: Okay. But there's no doubt that you --
18 | did you have a gun?
19 THE DEFENDANT: No, sir, I didn't have no gun.
20 THE COURT: Who had the gun?
21 THE DEFENDANT: One of my codefendants that was with
22 lme, sir.
23 THE COURT: Which one?
24 THE DEFENDANT: Donald Cheeks.
THE COURT: Mr. Cheeks had the gun?

25

13
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1 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

2 THE COURT: What kind of gun did he have?

3 THE DEFENDANT: I don't know what kind it is.

4 THE COURT: Well, what did it look like?

5 'THE DEFENDANT: It's just long. That's all I know.
6 | Just long.

7 THE COURT: Long.

8 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

S THE COURT: 1Is it a rifle?

10 THE DEFENDANT: I don't know if it was a rifle or not.
11 THE COURT: Well, do you know the difference in a

12 lrifle and a revolvexr? '

13 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.
14 THE COURT: Do you know the difference in a shotéun
15 | and automatic pistol? ‘ |

16 THE DEFENDANT: Well, probably can be a rifle or a
17 | shotgun. I don't know.

18 THE COURT: Do you think that's what it was, sir?

19 } THE>DEFENDANT: Sir, it's one of them --

20 THE COURT: In other words, he didn't have it.hidden
21 |in a pocket or a coat or anything?

22 THE DEFENDANT: No, sir. It was, it was a rifle and a
23 | shotgun, I know of, sir.

24 THE COURT: Long gun.

25 THE DEFENDANT: Yeg, sir.

14
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1 THE COURT: He just walked in with it and took the

2 | money and took the -- took-the weed.

3 THE DEFENDANT: No, sir.

4 THE COURT: Well, what happened?

S THE DEFENDANT: Just knocked on the door and he opened
6 it._ That's when we went in, sir. |

7 THE COURT: Okay. And so no doubt it was armed

8 | robbery. .

9 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. It was no doubt it's armed
10 | robbery, sir. 7
11 THE COURT: Did you know that arﬁed robbery is
12 {classified ds a violent crime? ‘ '
13 THE DEFENDANT: Not, not at the time I didn't. Now I
14 | know, sir._
15 THE COURT: And who told you that?

16 THE DEFENDANT: My lawyer.

17 THE COURT: Did you know that armed robbery was
18 | classified as a most serious offense?

19 THE DEFENDANT: No, sir, not until, no, sir.

20 THE COURT: Do you Xnow it now?
21 _THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

22 THE COURT: Do you. know what that means?

23 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

24 THE COURT: Do you kﬁow what the signifiéance of that?
25 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

15
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COURT: &And did you know that armed robbery was

1 THE
2 | also classified as a no-parole offense?
3 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.
4 THE COURT: And-do ydu understand the significance of
5 | that?
6 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.
7 THE COUﬁT: Mr. Bean has explained all of that to you?
8 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sif.
9 THE COUﬁT: You're 25 years old?
16 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.
11 THE COURT: How far did you go in school?
12 THE DEFENDANT: To the tenth.
13 THE COURT: Why did you quit?
14 THE DEFENDANT: I had went down the xoad, had got in
15 | trouble in school, and I went down the road, DJJ, violation
16 |of probatién. |
17 THE COURT: Are you married?
18 THE DEFENDANT: No, sir.
19 THE COURT: Do you héve any children?
20 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.
21 THE COURT: How many?
22 THE DEFENDANT: One.
23 THE COURT: Do you work?
24 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. I was.
25 THE COURT: Where?

16




- THE DEFENDANT: I was working Carolina -- Carolina

17

1

2 | Customs.

3 THE COURT: Carolina Customs?

4 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

5 THE COURT: Is that a van --

6 THE DEFENDANT: No. 1It's a -- you build pallets.

7 THE COURT: Build pallets? |

8 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

9 THE COURT: Okay. And you're in jail now?
10 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.
11 THE COURT: You been there since October or shortly
12 | thereafter -- 2009?
13 | THE DEFENDANT: Since October the 9th -- November the
14 | sth.
15 THE COURT: Okay. You been using any dope or drinking
16 |any alcohol while you've been in jail? |

17 THE DEFENDANT: No, sir, I haven't, sir.

18 THE COURT: You found any over there yet?

19 THE DEFENDANT: ©No, sir, I haven't. Wasn't looking
20 | for none, sir.

21 THE COURT: You weren't looking for any?
22 ' THE DEFENDANT: No, sir. o

23 THE COURT: Have youvever suffered from any type of
24 | substance abuse or addiction?

25 THE DEFENDANT: No, sir.

17
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1 THE COURT: No. Have you ever been treated for any

2 |type of mental illness or emotional disturbance?

3 THE DEFENDANT: No, sir, I haven't.

4 THE COURT: And you understand fully what you're doing
5 | now? |

6 TﬁE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. I am.

7 THE COURT: All right. Listen to what the solicitor

8 |tells me about the facts that relate to your cases. And

9 |once he's finished I'm going to ask you if you agree with
10 him -- i

11 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

12 THE COURT: -- or disagree. So listen to what he says
13 | so0 you can tell me. '
14 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

15 MR. FULMER: Judge, this happened October the 27th of
16 | 2009 down in Enoree at Road during the evening.
17 The homeowner told me that ox told police that he

18 |‘heard a knock at the door. A person identified himéelf as
19 .Nick. When he opened the door four men rushed in wearing
20 |masks and dressed in dark clothes and held him and his wife
21 |at gunpoint while their home was ransacked and money stolen
22 | from their home. A
23 At some point there was a fight ensued where he was

24 }hit and almost knocked out. During the course of that
25

fight Mr. Jeter's mask came off his face and the homeowner

18
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1 |was able to recognize Mr. Jeter as a man he had gone to
2 [middle school with, which is how the police got their
3 |initial lead.
4 They found Mr. Jeter and approached him and gave him
5 |hig rights, and thereafter Mr. Jeter confessed and named
6 |Mr. Cheeks and Mr. Bland as two of tﬁe other men who were
7 participéting in that robbery.
8 THE COURT: And is everybody in‘agreement on who had
9 | the gun and what kind of gun it was?
10 MR. FULMER: No. I don't think they are, Your Honor.
11 THE COURT: Well, tell me what~evefybody says.
12 MR. FULMER: I think each of the codefendants say that
13 | the other ones had the guns. -
14 The homeowner told me that he thought either they all
15 {had guns or there were at least three guns involved. But
16 | his best recollection is they were all cafrying guns.
17 THE COURT: What kind of guns?
18 MR. FULMER: He's here. I can let him talk to you.
19 THE COURT: Okay. Yeah. Where is he? This is
20 | Mr. Brown?
21 MR. FULMER: This is Mr. Brown, yes, sir.
22 THE COURT: You're William J. Brown.
23 THE VICTIM: Yes, sir.
24 THE COURT: You're the victim of the armed rdbbery.
25 THE VICTIM: Yes, sir.

19
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1 THE COURT: Now, Mr. Bland says that he took a

2 | couple -- or how many pounds did you say it was?

3 THE DEFENDANT: Three pounds outta the refrigeratof,
4 |sir _

5 THE COURT: Three poundsiof marijuana out of the

6 | refrigerator.

7 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

8 THE CQURT: Is that true or false?

9 THE VICTIM: False.
10 THE COURT: Did he take any marijuana at all?

11 THE VICTIM: False.

12 THE_COURT: Didn't take any marijuana?
13 THE VICTIM: No.

34 THE COURT: What'd they take?
15 THE VICTIM: Money.

16 THE COURT: How much money did they take?

17 THE VICTIM: Somewhere around three hundred outtA my
18 bocket I gave them because they kept demanding it. And
19 | then afﬁer I gave them that they evén'demanded even more
20 | holding my kids'up at gunpoint. And I ended up -- what I
21 |had to put back, saved, was in the refrigerator.  And I
22 |ended up going to the refrigerator and getting it and
23 |giving it to them also. »

24 THE COURT: Getting the money out of the iefrigerator?
25 THE VICTIM: ‘feah.

20




THE COURT: And which one -- how many were in the

21
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2 | house?

3 THE VICTIM: Four.

4 THE COURT: Four. And how many of them had guns?

5 THE VICTIM: All of them.

6 THE COURT: All four?

7 THE VICTIM: Three handguns and a shotgqun.

8 THE COURT: Three handguns and a shotgun.

9 THE VICTIM: Yeah.
10 THE COURT: Okay. Is there anything else you need to
11 |tell me, Mr. Brown?

12 THE VICTIM: No, sir.

13 THE COURT: Okay. Thank you.
14 All right. Tell me about Mr. Bland's recoxd.

15 MR. FULMER: From 2003 he's got an ABHAN and a simple
16'}assault; 2005, unlawful carrying of a weapon; alsd a simple
17 | assault and battery from 2005, possession or sale to a

18 | person under -- no -- possession of a stolen pistol!

19 | That's from 2005. Criminal domestic violence from 2006;
20 |another criminal domestic violence in 2006; escape from

21 ‘2007; and drug paraphernalia from 2008; D.U.S. in 2008 as
22 |well.

23 THE COURT: All right. Mr. Bland, you heard what the
24 | solicitor told me about your record. Do you agree or

25 | disagree?

21
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THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. I disagree a hundred

1

2 | percent, sir. |

3 THE COURT: All right. You disagree a hundred

4 | percent?

5 THE DEFENDANT: I, I, I agree a hundred percent.

6 THE COURT: You agree a hundred percent.

7 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. | |

8 THE COURT: And, Mr. Brown, you agree  or disagree with
9 | his version of the facts?

10 THE VICTIM: I adgree.

11 THE COURT: fou agree with Mr. Brown's version --
12 J Mr. Brown. '

13 THE VICTIM: Oh, no, no, no, sir, I don't.

14, THE COURT: So you're sticking with the story you told
15 {me earlier.

16 THE VICTIM: No, sir. It wasn't no -- whatever he
17 | say --
| 18 THE COURT: Listen to me. I said so you're staying

19 |with the story -- in other words, the story you told me
20 |earlier is still what you contend happened.
21 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir, positive.
22 THE COURT: Okay. All right. Do you still want me to
23 {accept your plea of guilty?

24 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir, I do, sir.

25 THE COURT: All right. 1I'll accept it and hear from

22
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you and Mr. Bean.
MR. BEAN: Thank you, Your Honor.
Judge, as Mr. Bland told you, he did attend Woodruff

High School and got into some trouble while he was in

-school. He went to the department of juvenile justice,

which is why he did not finish at Woodruff.

He is not married. Hé'does have a five-year-old
daughter who he lived with and supported until this
happened and he got put in jaii where he's been for the.
past couple of years. o '

Judge, hig family is here. His mama is here in the
front row in'the center, and his mother's -- the baby in
the blue top over here, they're here to support him today.

He does admit that he cqmmitted the crime that he's

charged with as far as the armed robbery is concerned. We

23
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would ask that Your Honor consider perhaps a reasonable
minimal sentence with a chance while he is in prison for
him to get some education so that hopefully when he comes
out he'll be able to go back to work at a legitimate job
and not have anything like this happen again. |

Your Honor, we have talked about this case. I
probably spent more time with Mr. Bland on this case than
any other case I have pending in any of these courts.

He is very adamant about what happened. His story

hasn't varied.  And he is -- has expressed to me that the

23
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facts as he related them to Yoﬁr Honor are correct and what
actually happened during this instance.

THE COURT: All right. Mr. Bland, anything you want
to add to what your lawyer has told me?

THE DEFENDANT: Sir, I just want to_say, ask you be

lehient on me. And could you forgive me for what I did,

sir? I want to apologize to the victim and the

codefendant, I mean, the victim and the solicitor, what I
did commit, my crime. Thank you.

THE COURT: Thank you. Did you see any children in
the house when you went in there?

THE DEFENDANT: Sir? .

THE COURT: Did you see the children in the house when
you went in there?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir, I did. I seen them once.
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She came to run, to run to her mama saying, Mama, it's --
and she went down where her mama is by the‘refrigerator on

the floor. She got down by her mama. I didn't see nobody

selse but one little girl, sir.

THE COURT: On Indictment 2010-1158, Sentence of the
Court is you, Cainell Antonio Bland, berconfined to the
South Carolina Department of Corrections for a period of 15
years.

END OF REQUESTED TRANSCRIPT OF RECORD
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I, the undersigned Linda D. Moffitt, Official Court
Reporter for the Seventh Judicial Circuit of the State of.
South Carolina, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a
true, accurate and complete Transcript of Record of all the
proceedings had and evidence introduced in the trial of the
captioned cause, relative to appeal, in the Court of
General Sessions for Spartanburg County, South Carolina, on
the 11th day of July 2011.

I do further certify that I am neither of kin, counsel

nor interest to any party hereto.
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IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA )

) SEVENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
COUNTY OF SPARTANBURG )
)

) 2012-CP-42-0510
Carnell Bland, #294049, )
)
Applicant, )
A )
v. ) RETURN

)
State of South Carolina, )
, )
Respondent. )
)

The Respondent, making its Return to the application for post conviction relief (PCR) -

filed January 31, 2012, would respectfully show this Court:
L
The Applicant is presently confined in the South Carolina Department of Corrections
~ pursuant to orders of commitment of the Spartanburg County Clerk of Cout. The Applicant was

indicted at the February 2010 term of the Spartanburg County Grand Jury for armed robbery and

possession of a weapon during the commission of a violent crime (10-GS-42-1158, counts 1 and

2). Applicant was represented by William S. Bean, IV, Esquire. On February 22, 2010, the
Applicant pled guilty to armed robbery and the charge of possesswn of a weapon during the
commission of a violent crime was dismissed. Applicant was sentenced by the Honorable J

Derham Cole for a period of fifteen (15) years. The Appiicant did not appeal his conviction or

sentence.

Attached herewith and incorporated herein-are the records of the Spartanburg County

Clerk of Court regarding the subject conviction(s), the Applicant's records from the South -

Page 1 of 5
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Carolina Department of Corrections, and the guilty plea transcript. The Respondent reserves the ‘
right to amend this Return upon receipt of any relevant materials. |
1L
In his current Application, the Applicant alleges that he is being held in custody |
unlawfully for the following reasons:

1. Ineffective assistance of counsel, in that;
a. Counsel failed to file a direct appeal at
Applicant’s request '
2. Prosecutor misconduct, in that;
a. “Codefendant was released, but the hands of one
. hands of all”
3. Judicial misconduct, in that;
a. The judge failed to inform Applicant of the
nature of the offense

I

In a post-conviction relief action, the Applicant bears the burden of _proving the

allegations in their application. Butier v. State, 286 S.C. 441, 334 8.E.2d 813 (1985). Where the
application alleges ineffective assistance of counsel as a ground for relief, the Applicant must :
prove that "counsel's conduct so undermined the proper functioning of the adversarial process
that the tn"al cannot be relied upon as having produced a just ;esult. " Strickland v. Washing’gon,
466 U.S. 668, 104 S.Ct. 2052, 2064, 80 L.Ed.2d 674, 692 (1984); m,. 334 S.E.2d 313.

The proper measure of performance is whether the attorney provided reprg:sentation V
within the range of competence required in criminal cases. The courts presume that counsel
rendered adequafe assistance and made all significant decisions in the exercise of reasonable
professional judgment._ Strickland, 466 U.S. 668. The Applican_t must overcome this

presumption in order to receive relief. Cherry v. State, 300 S.C. 115, 386 S.E.2d 624 (1989).

Page 2 of §



The reviewing court applies a two-pronged test in'evaluating allegations of ineffective
assistance of plea counsel. First, the Applicant must prove that counsel's performance was

deficient. Under this prong, the court measures an attorney’s performance by its "reasonableness

under professional norms." Cherry, 300 S.C. at 117, 386 S.E.2d at 625, citing Strickland.

Second, counsel's deficient performance must have prejudiced the Appﬁéant such that "there is a
reasonable probability that, but for céhnsel's unprofessional errors, the result of the proceeding
would have been different.” Cherry, 300 S.C. at 117-18, 386 S.E.2d at 625. With respect to
guilty plea counsel, the Aéplicant must show that there is a reasonable i)robability that, but for
counsel's‘alleged errors, he would not have pled guilty and would have insisted on going to tnal

Hill v. Lockhart, 474 U.S. 52, 106 S.Ct. 366, 88 L.Ed. 2d 203 (1985).

The Respondent submits that the Applicant cannot satisfy either requirement of the
Strickland test. However, the allegation of ineffective assistance of counsel probably raises

questions of fact that the record does not conclusively refute. Accordingly, the Respondent

requests an evidentiary hearing to fully resolve this issue. See Sharper v. State, 279 S.C. 264,
305 S.E.2d 247 (1983).
IV.
‘ Respondent submits that the second allegation fails to state a cléim cognizable under tﬁe
Post-Conviction Procedure Act, S.C. Code Ann. § 17-27-10 to -160 (2003). An Applicant may

commence a post-conviction relief action on the following grounds:

1. That the conviction or the sentence was in violation of the Constitution of
the United States or the Constitution or laws of this State;

2. That the court was without jurisdiction to impose sentence;

3. That the sentence exceeds the maximum authorized by law;

Page 3 of §
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4. That there exists evidence of material facts, not previously presented and
heard, that requires vacation of the conviction or sentence in the interest of

Jjustice;
5. That his sentence has expired, his probation, parole or conditional release

[was] unlawfully revoked, or he is otherwise unlawfully held in custody or
other restraint; or ‘

6. That the conviction or sentence is otherwise subject to collateral attack
upon any ground of alleged error heretofore available under any common
law, statutory or other writ, motion, petition, proceeding or remedy....
S.C. Code Ann. § 17-27-20 (1976).

Even if the facts alleged by the Applicant are true and Applicant’s co-defendant was
released, these facts do not support a cognizable claim for post-conviction relief under any of the
statutory grounds. The Respondent therefore moves for summary dismissal of this allegation
pursuant to S.C. Code Ann. § 17-27-70(c) (2003').

V.

The third allegation appeérs to raise an issues of trial court error, which is a direct appeal

issue that is procedurally barred by S.C. Code Ann. §17-27-20(b) (2003). Post-conviction relief

is not a substitute for a direct appeal. - Simmons v. State, 264>S.C. 417, 215 S.E.2d 883 (1974).
A post-conviction relief application cannot assert any issues that could have beén raised at trial
or on direct appeal. Ashley v. State, 260 S.C. 436, 196 S.E.2d 501 (1973). Thé Applicant could
have raised this issue on appeal. His failure to do so has waived this allegation as a groymd for
rélief. Therefore, the Court should summarily dismiss this allegation. |
| VI..
Each and every allegation confained within the application not hereinbefore expressly

admitted, qualified or explained is hereby denied.
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VIIL
WHEREFORE, having made its Return, the State requests that an evide.ntiary hearing be
held solely on the allegation of ineffective assistance of counsel.
Respectfully submitted,

ALAN WILSON
Attorney General

JOHN W. McINTOSH
Chief Deputy Attorney General

SALLEY W. ELLIOTT
Senior Assistant Deputy Attorney General

SUZANNE H. WHITE
Assistant Attorney General

Office of the Attorney General
P.O. Box 11549
Columbia, SC 29211

- Telephone: (803) 734-3737

g;iu,ﬁk 37 ,2012.
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IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS" -

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA )
) IN THE SEVENTH CIRCUIT
COUNTY OF SPARTANBURG )
)
) 2012-CP-42-0510
)
Carmnell Bland, # 294049 )
)
Applicant, )
) .
Vs ) AFFIDAVIT OF SERVICE BY MAIL
) .
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA, )
)
Respondent )
)
1. I am an employee of the Respondent in the above-captioned action.
2. Regular communication by mail exists throughout the State of South Carolina and that’

this is a proper circumstance of service by mail. -

3. I have this day served a copy of the Return in the above-captioned matter on the
following person by depositing same in the United States mail, postage prepaid:

Kenneth P. Shabel, Esquire

104 North Daniel Morgan Avenue
Suite 201

Spartanburg, SC 29306

DATED this 27" day of September, 2012

Troyeshi Brailey, Legal Assistant
For Respondent



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Beiondeg g,

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

COUNTY OF SPARTANBURG

Carnell Bland,

Applicant,

The State,

Respondent.

BETFORE:

e e e e e e e

IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS

TRANSCRIPT OF RECORD
2012~-CP-42-0510

April 3, 2013

Spartanburg, South Carolina

HONORABLE J. MARK HAYES, II, JUDGE

APPEARANCE S:

KENNETH P. SHABEL, ESQUIRE
Attorney for the Applicant

SUZANNE H. WHITE, ESQUIRE
Attorney for the Respondent

ORIGINAL

Margaret A. Woods
Circuit Court Reporter
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MOTIONS AND MATTERS

MS. WHITE: Thank Your Honor, this is the case of Carnell
Bland vs. the State, excuse me, it's Case Number
2012-CP-42-0510. He's represented today by Mr. Ken Sﬁabel.
Mr. Bland was indicted in February 2010 on charges of armed
robbery and possession of a weapon durin' a violent crime.

The possession of a weapon charge was nol-prossed and he pled
guilty February 22nd 2010 to a 15-year or, excuse me, to the
armed robbery to which he received a 15-year sentence. He's
alleged various allegations of ineffective assistance of
counsel, prosecutorial misconduct and judicial misconduct.

Obviously the State would move to summarily dismiss the

"prosecutorial and judicial_misconduct as direct appeal issues

per our return and then the ineffective assistance of counsel
claim he alleged that counsel faiied to file a direct appeal
at his requeét and I will turn it over to Mr. Ken Shabel at
this time.

MR. SHABEL: May it please the Court.

THE COURT: Yes, sir.

MR. SHABEL: For the record the only thing I would
primarily disagree with would be the fact that my client's
plea date was actually July 11 ---

MS. WHITE: I'm so sorry.

MR. SHABEL: --- 2011, it was not 2010. . Uh, he did file
his post-conviction relief application in January of 2012
which is, uh, well within the statutory time frames and (cough

3
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MOTIONS AND MATTERS

interruption) limitations. As to, uh, State's motion, uh,
Your Honor; I would argue that one of the concerns that my
client brought up in his, uh, petition for post-conviction
relief was failure to file a direct appeai so I believe those
issues are extremely relevant on these issues and we believe,
uh, Mr. Bean did not file direct appeal on those issues
pursuant to my client's wishes and that's part of the reason
we're here today as well as other, uh, significant factors
related to what we believe to be an involuntgry guilty plea.
Although I agree that we cannot tecﬁnically get
post-conviction relief for proseéutorial or judicial
misconduct, it is part and partial to a direct appeal request
that my client did make of Mr. Bean.

THE COURT: So is your client as part of his application
requesting thaﬁ he be allowed the opportunity for a direct
appeal on those issues?

MR. SHABEL: That is part of his appeal of his
post—ﬁonviction relief, Your Honor, yes, sir.

THE COURT: Okay.. Alright.

MR. SHABEL: We're prepared to go forward at this time,
call Mr. Bland.

THE COURT: Sir, just come right up here (indicating).
Place your left hand on the Bible and raise your right hand
and allow me the opportunity to swear you in, sir.

(Whereupon, the applicant came forwafd.)

4
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CARNELL BLAND - DIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. SHABEL

(Whereupon, avdiscussion was held off the record.)

CARNELL BLAND, having been

first duly sworn} testified as follows:

THE COURT: Sir, please have a seat in the red chair,

watch your step when you step up there, sir. Pull the red

chair up to the microphone.

MR. SHABEL: May it please the Court.

THE COURT: Yes, sir.

DIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. SHABEL:

= @ - @) I O

i )

@)

A.

Q.

Sir, would you state your full name for the record.
My name Antonio Bland.

Mr. Bland, how old are you?

Twenty-six.

What's the highest level of education you completed?
Eight grade.

Are you currently incarceratéd?

Yes, sir.

In what facility?

Perry Correction Institute.

How long have you been at Perry?

Since ju _- twelve thousand twelve December 5th.
Before that where were you?

Kirkland Correction.

And were you in the Spartanburg County Detention Center

before that?
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CARNELL BLAND - DIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. SHABEL

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you go straight from the deteption center to the, uh,
the Department of Corrections?

A, Yes, sir.

Q. How long were you at or in, uh, the Spartanburg Cdunty

Detention Center approximately?

A. Uh, ---

Q. Rough guess, I won't hold ya to it.

A. --- November the 9th to 2011.

Q.  Okay, so was there a period of time after you got

arrested for the charges here that you were out of jail and

then went back in?

A. No, sir.

Q. Okay, so you got arrested, stayed in ﬁail 'til you

pled, ---

A. Yes, sir.

Q. --— 'til you had your plea hearing.

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Okay. Now, Mr. Bland, yoﬁ are_cqrrently incarcerated for

a, uh, on a 15-year sentence for armed robbery, is that

correct?
A. Yes, sir.
Q. And that was based on on a plea hearing that you had in

July of 2011, is that correct?

A. Yes, sir.
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CARNELL BLAND - DIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. SHABEL

Q. Who was your attorney?

A. Mr. Will Bean.

Q. And was he retained or was he appointed?
A. I don't underétand that, sir.

Q. Did you pay for an attorney or did ---
A, Yes, sir.

Q. --— you have the Court appoint one?

A. Paid for one.

Q. Alright, thank you. Uh, how many times did you meet with

Mr. Blan -- Mr. Bean about these charges?

. One time.

Q. When was that?

A. I say like a week before We go .to court or sumtin'.

Q. Is that the first fime you met with him?

A. Um, 'bout the charges, the rest the time they were at my

bonds hearin's.

Q. Okay. When you went in for bond hearings, when you went
in to have a bond reduction or a bond request hearing, did you
ever get into the allegations of the charges themselves?

A. No, sir.

Q. - Did you ever discuss with him other than that one meeting

any of the defenses you might have?

A. What you mean by that, sir?
Q. Any alibi witnesses, any people that you wanted him to
investigate?
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CARNELL BLAND -~ DIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. SHABEL

A. I have talked to him one time 'bout that havin' a alibi.
Q. Okay, you did talk to him about an alibi witness.?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. What was the alibi witness's name?

A. Tiffany Hughes. -

Q. Did he éever tell you he contacted Tiffany?

A. He never told me that, he just wrote a name down.

Q. Okay. How early in his repfesentation did he know of

that alibi witness?

A. How early?

Q. Yes, like compare when you told him to when you
ultimately went to your hearing.

A. I told him 'bout the, um, that, um, Jbout‘her_this

basically the same day really ---

Q. Okay. Same day as your first meeting withlhim?
A No, sir.

Q. Same day as your hearipg.

A. I went to court yes, sir.

Q. Alright. What things did you ask Mr. Bean to do on your.

behalf representing you?

A. I aksed him.
Q. What did you want him to do for you?
I wanted him to get me 10 years.

P

Okay..

ED L@

In order for me to plead guilty, I want him get me 10

8
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years.

Q. Alright. Did you tell him you did it?

A. Sir?

Q. Were you ever -- were you, were you even at the scene of
the ---

A. No, I wasn't.

Q. --- incident?

A. No, sir, I wasn't.

Q. Okay. Do you tell him that?
A

Yes, I have told him that.

Q. More than one occasion.
A. Yes, I have.
Q. To your knowledge would Tiffany have verified that that

you weren't there?

A. Yes, yes, sir.

Q. For the record was this a situation where multiple
individuals were charged with this crime?

A. Yes, sir.

0. Okay. One a those individuals was here today for a

post-conviction relief application on his charge too, is that

correct?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. That the first time you'd seen him since ---
A. Since since we, um, since I had my charge?
Q. Yes.
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A. No, that aint my first time seein' him, no, sir.
Q. Okay, 1s this the first time you had a chance to talk

with him about it since then?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And what's that guy's name?

Aa. Uh, Terez Jeter.

Q. Ié Mr. Jeter prépared to testify that you weren't
there?

A. Yes, sir.

‘Q. You mentioned in your application prosecutorial

misconduct, what concerns did you have about the prosecution

in this case?

A. I was, well I was, I wanted that throw that out right
there.

Q. Okay, you don't wanna pursue that at this time.

A. No, sir. |

Q. Alright. Okay, thank you. Um, were you ever made aware

of any of the negotiations involving any other defendants?
A. Uh, what you mean by that?
Q. Were you ever made aware what their charges were and what

they ended up getting convicted or pled guilty of?

A. No, sir.
Q. Mr. Bean never went over that with you?
A. No, sir.

Q. Were you aware that on the same day that you pled guilty

10
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the other two, two of your other co-defendants were also there
to plead guilty?

A. Yes, sir, I'was aware of that.

Q. Okay. You think Mr. Bean did anything to re -- in in the
course of his representation of you to investigate your

case?

A. What you mean by that, sir?

Q. Did he ever talk to any witnesses to the best of your
knowledge?

A. Not that I know of.

Q. Okay. Did he ever tell you, Hey, I talked to this guy
or, Hey, I talked to that guy?

A, No, sir.

Q. During the course of your conversations with Mr. Bean,
was it all about a guilty pléa? Were all his conversations

with you about getting a guilty plea?

A. Yes, sir.
Q. Did he ever tell you about any defenses you may have?
A. One.

Q. Okay. What did he tell you would be any defense you
might have?

A. Only defense he said I had was, um, they don't have no,
um, or get, um, fingerprints and the people that see me on the
scene.

Q. Alright. Did you wanna go to trial?

11-
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A. I wanted to go to trial, sir.

Q. Why did you plead guilty that day?

A. I was scared.

Q. Did you testify scared that day?

A. Yes, sir, I did.

Q. Why were you scared?

A. The time.

Q. How much time could you been facing?

A. Life. Life.
Q. Alright. Ms. White mentioned another charge that they
dropped, truth is there were several charges that were dropped

that day, 1s that correct?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Kidnapping being one of 'em?

A. Kiénap, yes, sir.

Q. In fact, there were two charges of kidnapping I believe

that were dropped.
A. Two counts of it.
Q. You believe if Mr. Bean had done his proper investigation

you woulda been able to show the Court that you weren't there

that day?
A. Yes, sir.
Q. Do you believe if Mr. Bean had done a proper

investigation he would have never advised you to plead
guilty?

12
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A. Right.
Q. If he'd a talked to the people you asked him to talk to,
he would have never advised you to plead guilty.

A. Right, sir.

Q. Are you asking this court to grant you post-conviction
relief?

A. Yes, sir.

0. You understand what it means to get,post-conviction
relief?

A. No, sir, could you explain it to me.

Q. Sure. Do you understand that if you got granted

post-conviction relief you will be given a new trial, do you
understand that?

A. I understand that, sir.

Q. Do you understand that if you are given a new trial that
the results could come out very differently than what you have
right now?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. You could come out better, you could come out acquitted,

you could come out worse, ---

A. Yes, sir.

Q. --- do you understand that?

A. Yes, sir, I understand.

Q. You undefstand that any charges that were dropped could

very easily be brought back up as a result of a

13
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post-conviction relief case?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. - Knowing all of that, do you still wish to go forward and
have the Court grant you post-conviction relief?

A. Yes, sir.

MR. SHABEL: That's all I have for the witness, Your
Honor.

MS. WHITE{ And, Your Honor, if we can since you have I'd
like for you to take judicial notice of the transcript for
Mr. Jeter's plea.

MR. SHABEL: No objection, it was shown to me.

THE COURT: Transcript of Mr. Jetér's pl -- do I have
that as part ---

MS. WHITE: Yes, sir, ---

THE COURT: --- of this package?

MS. WHITE: --- it should be in the packet, he Was one
that withdrew earlier today. -

THE COURT: I mean, do I have it in Mr., uh, ---

MS. WHITE: Oh, I'm ---

THE COURT: --- Bland's pa ---

MS. WHITE: --- sorry, no, Your Honof. _I just became
aware of that being an potential issue, uh, a few moments ago

so it is in Mr. Jeter's packet but I can make it -~ we can'get

another copy for you.

MR. SHABEL: I have no objection of the Court taking

14
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judicial notice of that transcript, it is a court record, of
course the Court already has the transcript from this
particular hearing.

MS. WHITE: Right, do ---

MS. SHABEL: We just note for the record that my client
was not in the courtroom during any of the portions of the
transcript of Mr. Jeter's hearing.

THE COURT: Alright, I have Mr. Jeter's transcript.

MR. SHABEL: Thank Your Honor.

MS. WHITE: Thank Your Honor.

CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MS. WHITE:

Q. Uh, Mr. Bland, to your knowledge Mr. Jeter identified you
in a statement to police, did he not?

A. Yes. Yes, ma'am.

Q. Okay. And in fact, have you learned that he also talked

. about and they acknowledge that you participated and that he

actually had described you as the one with the gun on the
night of the robbery?

A. Yes, ma'am.

- Q. Okay. In fact, all three of the co-defendants gave

statements identifying you, you're the only one that did not,

is that correct?

A. No, ma'am. No, ma'am.
Q. Ckay.
A. No, mafam, it was two of 'em gave 'ems.

15
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Q. Alright. Give me just one minute. Mr. Cheeks and

Mr. Jeter, --—-

A. Yes, ma'am.
Q. --- 1is that correct?
A. Yes, ma'am.

Q. Okay, and I'm sorry that's two. Um, and you actually
acknowledged and said you were pleading freely and voluntarily
and that nobody had promised you anything, is that right?

A. I did say that then ma'am.

Q. And you do acknowledge that they dismissed burglary and
kidnapping charges in addition to the possession of a weapon
with a violent crime, is that right, a burglary first degree,

kidnapping and possession of a weapon during violent crime?

A. The whcle time I never had no, uh, possession with, um,
weapon of violent, uh, crime. I was ---

Q. Alr ---

A. --- never charged with that.

Q. You heard‘mé say earlier that you were indicted

originally count one was armed robbery, count two was

possession of a weapon during the commission of a violent

.crime, that was dismissed and described to be dismissed at the

beginning of your plea.

A. No, we didn't, we didn't, we didn't, we didn't dis -- we
didn't talk about that.

Q. Okay. If the transcript reflects that the solicitor read

16
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out your indictment on page 3 ---

A. Um-hum.

Q. --— the first of your plea saying, It's a true billed
indictment for armed robbery, pleading today without
recommendation or negotiation from the State, count two of the
indictment is being dismissed upon his plea, Your Honor, would

you agree then that the count two of the indictment ---

A. Yes, —-—--

0. --- was dismissed?

A. --- yes, ma'am.

Q. Okay. Now you testified that you talked with Mr. Bean

about the fact that there was no DNA or no fingerprints,
excuse me, and that the victim could not identify anyone, is
that right?

A. Right.

Q. And you said that you gave him the name of an alibi
witness on the day of your plea?

A. You're right.

Q. Okay. Did yoﬁ send him any letters ahead of time so that
he could try to investigate that prior to the plea?

A. No, ma'am.

Q. Okay. And, in fact, you.testified that you actually
wanted>him to get 10 years for you.

A. That's when I thought I was goin' in'with 10, ---

Q. Okay, so —-—-

17
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A. ~--- why I pled.

Q. - you thought you were goin' in for ---

A. Yes.

Q. -—-- 10 years?

A Yeah, I thought I was gonna get 10 years, that's why I

Q. And what, made you think that?

A. He told me ---

Q. So your testimony is Mr. Bean promised that you would get
10 years?

A. Ten years what he told me.

Q. So when the judge talked to ya about the fact that YOU
were facing up to 30 years and that he could give you any any
time of up to 30 years énd not less than 10, did you not
believe him?

A. Yes, ma'am.

Q. Okay. So so he did tell you he could give you between 10

and 30 ---

A. Um-hum.

Q. --- and they did say that there were no negotiations or
;ecommendations.

A. I don't, um, I don't remember that. I don't remember

sayin' that.
Q. Okay, and the part I just read earlier on page 3
indicated pleading guilty today without recommendation or

18
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negotiation from the State, does that sound_familiar?<
A. Say that one more time. |
0. That you were pleading guilty today without
recommendation or negotiation from the State?
A. Why's -- in my transcript it say, uh, that we had, we had
negotiatidn in my transcript?
Q. Do you have a page number?
A. I think it's, um, ‘I don't have my, um, ---

MS. WHITE: And if I can approach, Your Honor.
Q. I'm gonna show you the beginning of your transcript see
if you would agree with me that it says, Mr. Fulmer who is the
solicitor, "He's pleading guilty today without recommendation
or negotiation," and that that's where they discuss dismissing
count two as well as the burglary and kidnapping charges, so
do you agree that that they mentioned at the beginning that
there were no recommendations or negotiations?
A. Yes, ma'am.
Q. Okay.- And then the judge did tell you minimum of 10 and
maximum of 30.
A. Um-hum.
Q. Okay, but you still chose to plead guilty that day?
A. Yes, ma'am.
Q. And you told the Courf that you were pleading guilty
because you were guilty and you went in their home.
A, Yes, ma'am, I had to say that just to plead guilty,

19
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right?
Q. So you said you went in there to take some weed and
money.
A. Yeah.
Q. Okay.

MS. WHITE: Your Honor, that's all I have for this
witness.

THE COURT: Any redirect limited to what she went into?

MR. SHABEL: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Thank you, sir, you may step down. Be
careful with that first step.

(Whereupon, the applicant left the stand.)

THE COURT: Applicant have any other witness?

MR. SHABEL: Not at this time, Your Honor, possibly on on
redirect.

MS. WHITE: Your Honor, we would call Mr. William Bean to

‘the sﬁand.

THE COURT: C'mon around, Mr. Bean. Please place your
leftlhand on the Bible and raise your right hand, let me swear
you in.

WILLIAM S. BEAN,. having been first
duly sworn, testified as follows:

THE COURT: Thank you, sir. Please have a seat ip the
red chair and pull the red chair up to the microphone.

DIRECT EXAMINATION BY MS. WHITE:

20
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Q. You could state your name for the record.

A. William S. Bean.

Q. And, Mr. Bean, you've heard Mr. Bland testify that you
were retained in this case, do you recall how far in advance
of the plea you were retained?

A. Uh, well over a year, I don't remember exactly.

Q. And you also heard him testify that you only met with him
once to discuss the charges, uh, is that what your
recollection is .0of your meetings with Mr. Bland?

A. No, I met with Mr. Band -- Bland on numerous occasions,
uh, and in addition to that he had, uh, telephone privileges
from the county jail and we talked quite a few times on the
telephone as well.

Q. And during those discussions, did you have a chance to
talk with him about the charges and about any possible
defenses he might have?

A. . Yes, I did.

Q. And during those conversations did you discuss with him
any possible witnesses including an alibi witness?

A. Uh, yes, I did. Uh, we spoke about the co-defendants, we

~spoke about his, uh, stated,nonQinvolvement in the case and he

did give me the name of, uh, a potential alibi>witness, uh,
and if I can refer to my notes I can give you that specific.
Uh, on April the 13th 2011, he told me that he had been with a
Tiffany Hughes the night that the crime occurred and that she

21
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would, uh, give a statement to that effect which would provide
him with an alibi. Uh, Ms. Hughes according to Mr. Bland, uh,
was Alonzo Jeta'é'—— Jeter's, uh, baby mama and that's why

Mr. Jeter says he was with 'em. Uh, on the 14th of April the
next day, I called Ms. Hughes and spoke to her on»fhe |
telephone, she told me that she does not remember if Cafnell
was with her, uh, at her home that night or not, uh, she could
not provide anything in the way of an alibiAfor him;

Q. Okay. And in regards to talkin' with him about

proceeding to trial or pleading guilty, what was the general

- thought as you were discussing the case with him?

A. Uh, the concern was that obviously the'facts were such
that he, uh, would more than likely have been convicted had we
gone to trial and he was facing a substantial sentence. Uh,
we discussed, uh, plea negotiations, I.met with the solicitor,
uh, Mr. Fulmer several times to talk about, uh, what we might
do, uh, we wound up with a an offer from the solicitor which
Mr. Bland accepted where he pled to the one count and the
other counts were dropped. Uh, if I remember correctly
because the count that he pled to did not carry, uh, a

mandatory, uh, minimum, uh, we were of course free to argue

_for, uh, less time than than, uh, perhaps he might wind up

getting and I believe that the 10 years that Mr. Bland just
mentioned when he testified, uh, was, uh, what. we were hoping
that we could persuade the, uh, the sentencing judge to impose
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by way of the sentence but instead the judge gave 15.
Q. And when you said the facts were disturbing, he faced a
lotta time, in addition to this armed robbery, you said they

dismissed charges, were those burglary and kidnapping charges

as well?

A. Yes.

Q. And what were the the facts as you understood them for
the case ---

A Uh, ---

Q. --- if you recall?

A. --- I think was a home invasion if I remember, it was,

uh, it may, I believe it may have been a drug house, I'm not
sure about that, but there were several individuals involved.
Uh, Mr.'Bland did maintain that that he was not there but of
course the the others, at least two of the others were, uh,
had given statements implicating him as being a participant,
uh, and I believe having a weapon, uh, as well at the time of
the, uh, of the crime.

Q. And ultimately when you proceeded to the plea, had you
made any promises to Mr. Bland of any sentence that he would
receive?

A, The only diécussion we had about that was that I would
ask the judge, uh,.to consider giving him a, uh, lower
sentence than the maximum that he could receive. Uh, he did
have criminal record but it was not, uh, it was not terribly
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extensive and I was hoping the judge could do that‘but, uh,
clearly our discussion, Mr. Bland and myéelf, was to the
effect that the judge could sentence him up to ﬁhe maximum for
that particular crime he was pleading to.
Q. And at the time he pled guilty did you feel like he was
pleading freely and voluntarily based on the information or
did you feel like there was any coercion or anything
involved?
A;‘ I think he understood exactly what he was doing.
Q. Okay, thank you.

MS. WHITE: That's all I have, Your Honor.

MR. SHABEL: May it please the Court.

THE COURT: Um.
CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MR. SHABEL:
Q. Mr. Bean, when you and Mr. Bland arrived at court on this
particular day, were you.on the trial docket for that week or
was this a regglarly scheduled plea hearing?
A. I honestly don't remember.
Q. Okay. Do you recall that two of the other co-defendants
involved also pled guilty for their involvement on the same

day?

“A. I think I do remembef that.

Q. Dc you also recall that their sentencing was kind of held
off until the disposition of your client's?
A. I think that's right.
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Q. Alright, so would it be fair to say you guys were up for
trial that week?

A. Uh, that may be correct, I just don't recall.

Q. Okay. Um, there were four people allegedly involved,
what happened to the fourth guy?

A. I believe the fourth guy's charges were dismissed, I'm
not sure about that.

Q. And was that before, to your knowledge, before or after
my client ultimately pled guilty, your -- our mutual client
ultimately plead guilty?

A. I I don't remember.

Q. You obviously did Brady and discovery requests throughout
the course of your involvement, correct?

A. . Yes.

Q. Did he ever have a weapon? Did the State ever provide
you with a photograph or show you a weapon that was allegedly
involved in this particular case?

A. I don't believe so.

0. Was it your understanding that if the case went to trial
there was no weapon that was gonna be introduced?

A. I'm sorry, would you repeat that.

Q. Was it your understanding that if he were gone to trial

"there would not have been a weapon introduced?

A. I believe that's right.
Q. So that would have been a pretty solid defense in
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Mr. Bland's favor at trial, would you agree?

A, Uh, yes, it coulda been.

Q. Right, 'cuz obviously one of the things you'd wanna point
out as a criminal defense attorney is they're accusing him of
armed robbery yet they don't have the gun.

A. Correct.

Q. Was there any witness to your knowledge that was going to

testify he had a gun at that scene?

A.  Yes.

Q.. Anybody other than one of his potential co-defendants?
A. No.

Q. Did any of the eyewitnesses implicate him?

A. I don't believe so. The, uh, people who did the crime

were wearing masks, uh, one of them if I remember correctly

" had ‘his mask come off ---

0. That wés Mr. Jeter, correct?

A. Uh, yes, it ---

Q. Okay.

A. --— was Mr. Jeter and the people who were being robbed
recognized Mr. Jeter, they knew him and éo that's how all
this --- |

Q. Okay.

A. - was resolved. The police contacted mi-- arrested

Mr. Jeter I think and then he implicated the other defendants.

Q. Okay. And obviously one of them being Mr. Bland.
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A. Yes.
Q. Did Mr. Bland ever give a statement to police to the best
of your knowledge?

A. Uh, no.

Q. He maintained his innocence to police the entire time?
A. I believe that's correct.
Q. So really the only evidence that was gonna be introduced

at trial implicating Mr. Bland for this crime was a statement
by one of the other co-defendants or two of the other
co-defendants?

A. Uh, correct but but my understanding is that they were
prepared to testify, uh, that he was involved in the crime and
that he had a weapon.

Q. Okay, but these were two individuals that you would've
been able to cross-examine based on their prior criminal
record as weli as their involvement in this particular
allegation, correct?

A, Correct.

Q. And I'm sure you've used this tactic before where you

_could say you're basically testifying to try and get a

letter —- a lesser sentence, correct?
A. Correct.
Q. Okay. For the record no other eyewitnesses, no other

evidence other than the co-defendants' testimony that could

have implicated him ---

27




66

10

11

12

13

14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

WILLIAM S. BEAN - CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MR. SHABEL

A. That's right.

Q. --- and yet you believe the overwhelming evidence would
have found him guilty.

A. I believe so.

Q. You recall Mr. Bland ever asking you to file an appeal of

his conviction of ---

A. He did ---

Q. --- his, of his sentence I should say?
A. --- he did not.

MR. SHABEL: Alright, that's all I have for the witness.

THE COURT: Any, uh, redirect?

MS. WHITE:' Nothing further, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Thank'you, sir, you my step down.

(Whereupon, the witness left the stand.)

THE COURT: State have a -- any other witness?

MS. WHITE: ©No, Your Honor, the.State has no other
witnesses.

THE COURT: Applicant have anything in reply?

MR. SHABEL: No, Your Honor. |

THE COURT: Alright, so I am, just so that I'm clear the
transcript of the guilty'plea of Donovan Cheeks will be made
part of the record of this case?

MR. SHABEL: That transcript involved_Mr. Cheeks and
Mr. Jeter ---

MS. WHITE: Yes.
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time.

MR. SHABEL: --- both pleading simultaneously at the same

I do not oppose that being part of the Court's

consideration in this case.

much.

THE COURT: Okay.
MS. WHITE: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Alright, I'll let you know. Thank you very

MR. SHABEL: Thank Your Honor.

MS. WHITE: Thank you.
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I further certify that I am neither attorney nor counsel
for, nor related to or employed by any of the parties
connected to the action, nor am I financially interested in
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October 3, 2013
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Margaret A. Woods, Court Reporter

in and for the State of South Carolina at Large.
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
' _ ) SEVENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
COUNTY OF SPARTANBURG )
) A
) 2012-CP-42-0510
Carnell Bland #294049 )
- . '\'—‘h‘”‘ e e e e el ) SELTee DT T alsresai gl Steai.lanneie s
Apphcant )
)
Y ... ) ... ORDER OF DISMISSAL .
)
State of South Carolina, )
' )
Respondent. )
)

' “This matter comes before the Court by way of an Application for Post-Conviction Relief ™™

filed January 31, 2012. The Respondent made its Return on or about September 27, 2012. An

" 'ev1dent1ary heanng into the matter was convened on Apnl 3, 2013, at the Spartanburg County

Courthouse. The Applicant was present at the heanng and was represented by Kenneth P.

o€

69

E' D"'
vd

represented the Respondent e % ‘—;m

IX"T

L

At the hearing, the Apphcant testified on his own behalf. William S. Bean, I’V’ Eg.ureg

23"11\'!

also testlﬁed This Court also had before. 1t a copy of the records of the Spartanbﬁg @Jnty.)o'—‘

_)('_

8

=g
-

Clerk of Court regardmg the subject convictions, Applicant's records from the Sou@ Ca:elm
Department of Corrections, the Return, the Appellate Court records, the plea transcript, and asﬂ
Court’s Exhibit #1, the transcript of Applicent’s co-defendant Jeter’s guilty plea. .
PROCEDURAL HISTORY . .
The Applicant is presently confined in the South Carolina Department' of Corrections
pursuant to orders of commitment of the Spartanburg County Clerk of Court. The Apphcant was.

mdxcted at the F ebruary 2010 term of the Spartanburg County Grand Jury.for armed robbery: and

Page 1 of 8




70

possession of a weapon during the commission of a violent crime (10-GS-42-1 158, counts 1 and
ﬁ). Applicant was represented by William S. Bean, IV, Esquiré. On February 22, 2010, the
Applicant pled guilty to armed robbery and the charge of possession of a weapon during the

cominissionof 4 viclent crime was dismisséd. Applicatit was sénténced by the Honorable F;

Sentence.

Derham Cole for a period of fifteen (15) years. The Applicaﬁt did not appeal his conviction or

ALLEGATIONS
.- In his application, the Applicant alleges he is being held in custody unlawfully for the
. m'fij"l"lAdix%}ihg."flewéhsBﬁS’:w" e e
1. Ineffective assistance of counsel, in that; . '
] .4, Counsel faled to filea direct appealat = .
. Applicant’s request '
2. Prosecutor misconduct, in that;
a. “Codefendant was released, but the hands of
' one hands of all”
3 Judicial misconduct, in that

a..  The judge failed to inform Applicant of the ~~

nature of the offense = % e
| ‘ g =3

. FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW ;‘E’: : zx

\ o o %C’?‘x*r

) This Court has had the opportunity to review the record in its entirety and haghearyhem ==

| g E g2
testimony and arguments presented at the PCR hearing. This Court has ﬁthhexr‘j‘hacfihe %4
' ' < o
upon their
crédibility. This Court has Weighed the testimony accordingly. Set forth below are the relevant

opportunity to observe each witness who testified atffhe hearing, and to.closely pass
findings of fact and, conclusions of law as required by S.C. Code Ann. § 17-27-80 (2003).
This Court r’;o»tes( the Applicant voluntarily waived his allegation for prosecutorial

misconduct at the beginning of the hearing. The Applicant informed this Court that he would be

proceeding on the allegations of ineffective.assistance of counsel and judicial misconduct based -
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upon the theory Counsel failed to file an appeal following the plea and the trial judge failed to
inform Applicant of the nature of the offense. ‘

Ineffective Assistance of Counsel

" 'In a PCR action, “[t]he burdén of proof is on the applicant t6 prove His allégations by a~~ =

preponderance of the evidence.” Frasier v. State, 351 S.C. 385, 389, 570 S.E.2d 172, 174 (2002)

(citing Rule 71.1(e), SCRCP). Where ineffective assistance of counsel is alleged as a ground for

- relief, the Applicant must prove that "counsel's conduct so undermined the proper functioning of

the -adversarial ~process. that the trial' cannot be relied upon as havihg produced a just result.”

 Strickland v. Washlh on, 466 U.S. 668, 104 S.CL 2052, 2064, 80 LEd2d 674, 699 (1984);

Butler v. State, 286 S.C. 441, 334 S.E.2d 813 (1985) - N

The proper measure of performance is whether the attorney prov1ded representatlon

within the range of competence reqm'red in criminal cases. Courts presume @t cﬁmsg o
e @ =E

relief. Cherry v. State, 300 S.C. 115, 386 S.E.2d 624 (1989). S:;

First, the Applicant must prove that counsel s performance was deficient. Uﬁ&erféus
prong, attorney performance is measured by its reasonahleness under professional norms."
Qhelry,f 300 S.C. at 117, 385 SE2d at.625, citing Strickland. = Second, counsel's deficient
performance must ha\}e prejudiced the Applicant such that "there is a reasonable 'p;obabihty that,
but for counsel's unprofe_séidna-l errors, the result of the proceeding would have been different.”
Q_}m 300 S.C. at 117-18, 3~8\6 S.E.2d at 625. ;‘A reasonab]e probability is a probability

sufficient to undermine confidence in the outcome of trial.” Johnson v. State, 325 S.C. 182, 186,

480 S.E.2d 733, 735 (1997) (citing Stri‘ckland). With respect-to guilty plea counsel, the

Page 30f 8
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Applicant must show that there is a reasonable probability that, but for counsel's alleged errors,

he would not have pled guilty and would have insisted on going to trial. Hill v. Lockhart, 474
U.S. 52, 106 S.Ct. 366, 88 L.Ed. 2d 203 (1985).
" Applicant testifiéd” that heé meet with Coiifisel "o discuss* the' charges only-once in the-

week prior to court. Applicani testiﬁed he met with Counsel about bond hearings, but was never

‘though he testified that he told Counsel_multiple times that he was not at the scene. Furthermore,

Applicant- testified he discussed possible evidence issues dealing with a lack of fingerprints or

- victim identification. On the day of the trial, Applicant testified that he informied Counsel that

Tiffany Hughes\could be an alibi witness. Applicant testified that he was'not aware whether or

not Counsel ever mtervxewed any w1tnesses Apphcant testified that Counsel only talked about

him pleading to the charges Apphcant also testified that his co-defendant, Alonzo-ietet‘ézvaﬁ?, .

and talked with him a number-of times on the phone. Counse! testified that the Apphcaﬂfand‘ﬁe

B
c_.- —Ara
___prepared to testlfy to the fact that Apphcant Wwas not present at the scene of the robbery% g ;’”—«
I Ry G - e —
el T
Counsel testlﬁed that he was retained to represent the Applicant a well over a %ax fhor g;“_}fg

W

x o
to the scheduled trial. Counsel testified that he met with the Applicant on numerous cm;casws 25

- -—l
talked about co-defendants and Applicant gave Counsel the name of an alibi witness on April 13,
2011. Counsel testified the alibi witness’ name was Tiffany Hughes, who had a child with the co-
defendant, Alonzo Jeter. However, Coﬁnsel testified he interviewed Ms. Hughes and she

indicated that she did not recall if Applicant was at her home that night. Counsel felt that her

‘statement did not support her being an alibi witness. Furthermore, Counsel testified that he and

the Applicant discussed the possible defenses of the fact that no weapon was ever found and the

fact that a fourth co-defendant’s charges were dismissed.

Page 4 of 8
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Counsel testified that the other two co-defendantg made statements about the incident and
were prepared to testify Applicant was at the scene with a gun. However, Counsel testified
Applicant claimed he was there but the eo-defendants were the ones who actually had the gun.

“Coutiseltestified he didnot 'promise‘a‘ lower sentence;-but indicated-that-he would ask for a lower

sentence. Counsel testified that he reviewed with the Applicént the elements of each charge,

" “possible sentence, and evidenee that the State had agamst him pnor to the trial. Counsel testlﬁed R
that because this was a home invasion, the facts were disturbing and the Applicant faced a great
deal of time. Counsel testified Aﬁplicant did not ask him to file an appeal. .-
Thxs Court finds the testimony of Counsel 07be more credlbie ‘that the-testimony of the -
Apphcant Although the Apphcant appea:ed credlble in appearance, his testxmony conflicted
mwnh?? was dlscredlted with other more reliable ewdence “including Applicant’s own statemen"ts""”

at his guilty plea. Although Applicant alleged that' Counsel failed to pursue his alibi witness, not

only did Counsel testify that he de speak w1th the w1tness but the W1tness was notgese%d én

testlfy at the PCR heanng PreJudxce from trial counsel's failure to interview or ca%wmﬁsseg’z::a'r

™ N Oéa\; :
23
cannot be shown where the thnesscs do not testify at post-conv1ct10n relief. Un@ood V. og !
I’ -z <O
o

State, 309 S.C. 560 425 SE.2d 20° (1992) Bassette v. Thompson, 915.F.2d 932 (4th C\E 1999 L;:_ =

cert. denied, 499 U.S. 982 (1991). The Apphcant’s mere speculation as to what a Vﬁ%nesses

testimony would have been cannot, by itself, satisfy his burden of showing prejudice. Clark v.

State, 315 S.C. 385, 434 S.E.2d 266 (1993); Glover v. Stéte, 318 S.C. 496, 458 S.E.2d 538
(1995). An Applicant must produce the testimony of a favorable witness or otherwise offer the
testirhony in accordance with the rules of evidencé at the PCR '.heéri‘ng in order to establish
prejudice from the witness' failure to testify at trial. Bannistef v. State, 333 S.C. 298, 509 S.E.2d

807 (1998).
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demonstrated to counsel that he was interested in appealing. Roe v. Flores-Ortega, 528 U S. 470,

mcounsel s alleged- ‘errors, h he would not have pled guﬂty and would have m51sted on

This Court also finds that the Applicant's allegation that Counsel failed to file an appeal is
without merit. The Applicant has alleged that he is entitled to a review of direct appeal issues

pursuant to White v. State, 263 S.C. 110, 108 S.E.2d 35 (1974). Counsel has a constitutionally-

: impds‘éd"'duty‘t(’j'"t:’o"'nﬁii’ltfWit}f‘a-‘d‘e‘feﬁdant-'ab'out"an"‘app'eai when there is'reason-to think-either*f*l*) o

that a rational defendant would want to appeal, or (2) that this i)articular defendant reasonably

N

120 S.Ct. 1029 (2000). The Applicant faced significantly more time than he received follo_wing
his plea to armed robbery. This Court finds Counsel’s testimony that the Applicant never asked -
Counsel to file an appeal to be credible.” "

This Court finds no deﬁc1ency on Counsel’s behalf and finds that the Apphcant falled to

” show any prejudice that may have resulted from Counsel’s alleged d deficiencies. With respect to .

guilty plea counsel, the Applicant must show that there is a reasonable probabxhty that but ﬁar

. C=
Hill v. Lockhart 474 US. 52 106 S.Ct. 366 88 L.Ed. 2d 203 (1985) “This Court ﬁ;%s th%t‘th@cﬂ;
) !

_ ' m o
Applicant has failed to meet h1s burden of proof. Accordingly, this allegation is dxsrms‘%d. =2 g‘é
. o , " @ gL
Judicial Misconduct . ' F’\‘ N f":‘
. : <L D

As it relates to the allegation of judicial misconduct, this Court finds that although it was

raised in the application, the Applicant did not pursue this issue at his hearing. Therefore, this

Court deems the claim of judicial misconduct to be voluntarily abapdoned by the Applicant.
Summary |
| This-Ctnart finds in regafds to the allegaﬁdns of ineffective assistance of. cbu\rtsel,
Counst:l’s testimony is more credible than the Applicant’s testimony. This Court further finds

Counsel adequately conferred with the Applicant, conducted a proper investigation, was
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established any constitutional violations or deprivations that would require this coufo gfant Bf2

79

thoroughly competent in his representation, and that Counsel’s conduct does not fall below the
objective standard of reasonableness.

'Accordingly, this Court finds the Applicant has failed to prove the first prong of the

- Strickland-test —that-Counsel -failed-to-render-reasonably effective: assistanee-under prevailing«.- - . v

professional norms. The Applicantfailed to present specific and compelling evidence that

N

This Court also _ﬁnds the Applicant has failed to prove the second prong of Strickland —

- -that he was prejudiced by Counsel’s performance.’ This Court concludes the Applicant has not

et his burden of proving Counsel failed to render reasonably effective assistance: See Fragier =

supra. Therefore, this allegation is denied. | N

v Based on all the foregoing, this Court finds and concludes that the Applicant has not
0.

% :; B et i
>5

v s
application. Therefore, this application for post conviction relief must be denied a dlsgﬁ)ss D;.‘:‘
with prejudice. C L P
, Z = Q2
° This Court cautions Applicant that he must file and serve a notice of appeal w@in‘ @rty;cg:‘
. SR = -
L - (] il

(30) days from the receipt by counsel of written notice of entry of judgment to secure the

appropriate appellate review. See Rule 203, SCACR. Pursuant to Austin v. State, 305 S.C. 453

(1991), an Applicant has 2 right to an appellate counsel’s assistance in seeking review of the
denial of PCR.. Rule 71.1(g), SCRCP, provides that if the applicant wishes to seek appellate
review, PCR counsel must serve and file a Notice of Appéal on the Applicant’s behalf. Your

attention is directed to South Carolina Appellate Court Rule 243 for appropriate procedures for

appeal.

Page 7 of 8



76

2. The Applicant must be remanded to

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED:

1. That the Application for Post-Conviction Relief must be ‘denied
and dismissed with prejudice;.and

of the Respondent.

AND IT IS SO ORDERED this

' ~ Page 80of 8
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) INDICTMENT
COUNTY OF SPARTANBURG )

At a Court of General Sessions, convened on’ SES 1R I , the Grand

Jurors of Spartanburg County present upon their oath:

COUNT ONE---ARMED ROBBERY

That Carnell Antonio Bland, did in Spartanburg County on or about October 27,
2009, while armed with a deadly weapon, being a gun, did feloniously take from the ‘
person or presence of William J. Brown, by means of force, violence, and/or
intinﬁdation. goods or monies, such goods or monies being described as follows: a sum
of money belonging to William J. Brown, with intent to deprive the owner permanently of
such property, in violation of §16-11-330 (A), THE CODE OF LAWS OF SOUTH

'CAROLINA, (1976), as amended.

COUNT TWO---POSSESSION OF WEAPON DURING
COMMISSION OF A VIOLENT CRIME

That Carnell Antonio Bland, did in Spartanburg County on or about October‘27.
2009, possess or visibly display a gun during the commission of a violent crime,. tp-wit:
ARMED ROBBERY. in violation of Code §16-23-480, CODE OF LAWS OF SOUTH
CAROLINA, (1976), as amended.

Against the peace and dignity of the State, and contrary to the statute in such case

made and provided.

ASSISTANT SQLICITOR




STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA comp)ute*’m THE COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS

COUNTY OF SPARTANBURG g |
STATE VS. ) INDICTMENT/CASE#: 2010GS4201158
Carnell Antonio Bland ) AWE _M1I7343
AKA: ) Date of Offense: _10/27/2009
Race: BLACK Sex: M Age: 25 ) S.C.Code § : 16-11-0330(A
DOB: . SS#: )  CDRCode#: _ 0139
Address: . - ... )
City,State,Zip; o
DL: SIF g SENTENCE SHEET
*CDL Yes[] No[] CMV Yes[] No[] Hazmat Yes[] No[] : A
In disposition of the said indictment comes now the Defendant who was (7 CONVICTED OF or XIPLEADS
TO: Robbery/ Armed Robbery, robbery while armed or allegedly armed with a deadly weapon
in violationof § 16-11-0330(A of the S.C. Code of Laws, bearing CDR Code # 0139
(] NON-VIOLENT VIOLENT [JSERIOUS  (XJMOSTSERIOUS  [}Mandatory GPS{(CSC J§17-25-45
) w/minor 1st or Lewd Act) .
The charge is:  {X] As Indicted, DLesser Included Offense, [ ]Defendant Waives Presentment to Grand Jury: (defendant's initials)
i egotiations or Recommendation, [0 Negptiated Sentence, [ Recommendatnon by the State.
Isxq3_ Ll Li/ ¢o2
SC Bar# Defendant Atiorney for Defendant SC Bar®
WHEREFORE, the Defendant is commited to the A State Department of Corrections, [] County Detention Center,

for a determinate term of l 5 days/months/years.er O under the Youthful Offender Act nottoexceed — — years
and/or to pay a fine of $ —_ ) i - days/months/years and/or payment

——

of§ ~— plus costs and assessments as applicable*;

roonthsfyears and subject to South Carolina Department of Probation, Parole and Pardon Services standard conditions of
probation, which are incorporated by reference.

[} CONCURRENT or [ CONSECUTIVE to sentence on:

(] The Defendant is to be given credit for time served pursuant to S.C. Code § 24-13-40 to be calculated and applied
by the State Department of Corrections.

[ The Defendant is to be placed on the Central Registry of Child Abuse and Neglect pursuant to S.C. Code §17-25-135.

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 922,it is unlawful for a person convicted of a violation of Section 16-25-20 6r 16-25-65 (Criminal
Domestic Violence ) to ship,iransport,possess,or receive a firearm or ammunition.

. . SPECIAL CONDITIONS:
[JRESTITUTION: [(] Deferred [} Def. Waives llearing [ ] Ordered  PTUP
Total: § plus 20% fee: $ ' days/hours Public Service Employment
Payment Terms: Obtain GED 0
[ Set by SCDPPPS Attend Voc. Rehab. or Job Corp.
May serve W/E begining
Recipient: Substance Abuse Counseling O
*Fine: 5 Random Drug/Alcohol testing . [
§ 14-1-206 (Assessments 107.5 %) $ Fine may be pd. in equal, consecutive weekly/monthly
§ 14-1-211(A)(1) (Conv. Surcharge) s10 § 0. oD pmts. of § . beginning
14-1-211(A)2) (DUI Surcharge) - 8100 3 . .
g 56-5-2995 (DUI Assessment) $12 3 $ paid to Public Defender Fund
§ 361-286 (DUI Breath Tes1) $25 S Other:
Proviso 47.9 (Public Def/Prob) $500  §
§ 14-1-212 (Law Enforce. Funding) $25 $ 2\6 cO
§ 14-1-213 (Drug Court Surcharge) £150 S -
§ 50-21- 114(BUI Breath Test Fee) $50 $ ]
§ 56-5-2942(J) (Vehicle Assessment) $40/ea  § ] Appointed PD or appointed other counsel,
Proviso 90.5 (SCCIA Surcharge) $5 3 = 0 8§ 47.12 requires $500 be paid to Clerk
3% to County (if paid in installments) $  3qcC during probation.
TOTAL $ 122 i
Presiding Judge A
Clerk of Court/ Dep ﬂ@ )\I/ﬁ el ' Judge Code: : N 2053
Coun Reporter: “’? ﬂ-if{DChu_ JI Sentence.Date: ' /- ‘U -1 \ '

SCCA/2IT (03/2011)
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